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Purchasing Department 

530 Water Street 

Oakland, CA 94607 

 

Date: March 26, 2014 

 

ADDENDUM No. 1 

 
RFP 13-14/10, Airport Parking Revenue Control System Consulting Services 

 

This Addendum modifies the original RFP Documents for the above RFP.  Acknowledge receipt 

of this addendum in the space provided on the RFP Acknowledgement and Signature Form 

(Attachment 3). Failure to do so may disqualify your proposal. 

 

The following correction has been made to the above referenced RFP: 

 In addition to providing the cost detail on the Proposal Work Sheet (included in the RFP 

packet), proposers must also provide cost estimates for Phase I and Phase II work related to 

a PARCS installation in the Airport’s Permit Parking lots referenced in Table 1 on RFP 

page 3.  Please use the “Proposal Work Sheet—Optional Cost Information” sheet included 

with this addendum to quote the cost associated with the Airport Permit Parking Lots.  The 

Port is not sure if it will procure the optional Phases I and II services and costs associated 

with the Airport Permit Parking Lots, but would like to have that information available.  

Please be sure to print out the “Proposal Work Sheet—Optional Cost Information” sheet 

included with this addendum and include it with your proposal. Both the Proposal Work 

Sheet and the Proposal Work Sheet-Optional Cost Information sheet must be 

submitted with your proposal.   

 

There are no other changes to RFP 13-14/10. 

The following questions (some paraphrased) were submitted by the deadline and are 

answered in this addendum. 

 

1. Question: The requirement in Section IV. Submission Requirements, item 3, Clients 

“Provide names, addresses and contact information for (3) three clients for whom you 

provided similar services within the past three years”, seems too restrictive.  Will the Port 

consider eliminating the within the past three years requirement? 

 

Answer: The requested level of recent, related experience (three clients within the past three 

years) is appropriate and deemed necessary to assure the Port that the successful proposer 

will have the a sufficient level of recent experience and current knowledge of PARCS 

software and hardware capability and industry trends.  If your firm does not have three 
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clients with similar services, within  the past three years, then provide the experience your 

firm has and the Port will consider your firm’s relevant experience.   

 

2. Question: While we totally support the Port’s attempt to involve small local businesses, this 

is actually discriminatory because you are allocating up to 15% in item 6 of your criteria.  

We respectfully request the Port not be discriminatory by reducing this percentage to a 

smaller percentage and not hold it against our firm if we do not have any Local Impact Area 

vendors involved in our proposal.   

 

Answer: It is the policy of the Port of Oakland to encourage and facilitate full and equitable 

opportunities for small local businesses to participate in Port contracts for the provision of 

goods and services within its area of impact.  Up to 15 preference points are awarded to 

Port certified local and small firms.  This process is not to discriminate against any 

proposer but rather to encourage participation of local and small firms. Up to 85 points will 

be awarded to proposers based upon other criteria. The final score will be evaluated on the 

entire evaluation criteria and weights. 

 

3. Question: Are professional services taxable locally and in the State of California? 

 

Answer: Professional services are generally not taxable, but Fabrication Labor and 

services related to taxable sales are taxable.  Please consult the California State Board of 

Equalization for when Labor is taxable. 

 

4. Question:   In Attachment 10, Professional Service Agreement, Appendix C Insurance, our 

firm has some concerns regarding the required and types of insurance specifically desired by 

the Port as follows: 

 

a. In paragraph 2. Business Automobile Liability Insurance appears to not be required 

since our firm owns no automobiles and will only rent a vehicle from a car rental 

company if required and will purchase insurance that meets the Port’s requirements 

for each rental requirement.  Is this acceptable to the Port? 

 

Answer: If there are no owned autos, the applicable auto coverage is hired/non-

owned automobile insurance.   This coverage is separate from coverage that might 

be purchased for a specific car rental as it also provides protection to the firm for 

any vehicles that could be used in connection to the firm’s business (employees who 

drive their own vehicles, etc).  We view this as a core type of insurance to protect 

the consultant’s business for vicarious liability related to non-owned/hired autos.  

Auto losses have the potential to be large and otherwise drain a firm’s financial 

ability to effectively carry out services whether the auto losses are specifically 

related to the work done for the Port or not.    

 

b. In paragraph 3. Workers Compensation and Employer’s Liability Insurance we have 

a question regarding the excessively high of $1,000.000 requirement for each 

accident, bodily injury per employee, and bodily injury bodily injury by disease.  

Our past experience the liability figure has been between a low of $100,000 to a 

high of $200,000 dollars.  We respectively request the Port lower the $1,000,000 

dollar amount to a more reasonable amount? 
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Answer: The $1,000,000 Employers’ Liability limit is a standard Port insurance 

requirement that has been validated through a benchmarking exercise.  The 

$1,000,000 Employers’ Liability limit will be required. 

 

c. In paragraph 4.  Professional Liability Insurance is normally required for 

architectural or engineering projects involving construction design and not required 

for pure consulting parking revenue control system design projects.  It is almost 

impossible for a pure consulting firm to obtain Errors and Omission Insurance and 

is cost prohibited for a pure consulting firm.  Our past experience has been that our 

previous authority clients (ie: LAX, DFO. DFW. BOS. ORD) waived this 

requirement that was replaced by our current Business Corporate Liability package.   

We respectively request the Port waive the Errors and Omission requirement? 

 

Answer: Professional “Errors & Omissions” Liability insurance is required of any 

consultant providing services to the Port.  This coverage responds to financial loss 

arising out of errors & omissions related to services which set it apart from the 

Commercial General Liability insurance that responds to bodily injury and property 

damage losses.  An error or omission related to a parking revenue control system 

project could lead to financial loss arising out of revenue handling or 

integrity/security of the proposed system.  This coverage will be required. 

 

5. Question: Should evidence of insurance be provided with the proposal?  

 

Answer: For the purposes of the RFP, respondents would only include the signed Insurance 

Acknowledgment Form (Attachment 9) with the proposal documents.   The respondent 

awarded the contract would request their insurance representative provide directly to the 

Port of Oakland evidence of insurance and all the applicable endorsements described in 

Appendix C Insurance, prior to executing the Professional Services Agreement".   

 

6. Question: Does the current PARCS have a fiber backbone? 

 

Answer: Yes, there is dual server architecture where one set of servers are located in the 

parking management office, and the second set are located in a server room inside Terminal 

2.   
 

7. Question: Does the Port want to adopt 5.9 (Ghz) data transmission technology as part of a 

new PARCS?    

 

Answer: This refers to a widely-adopted data transmission standard that relates to AVI-type 

systems used to capture data from moving vehicles.  The Port would want to maintain 

(current) Title 21 (FasTrak-type AVI) capability, anticipating it would be based on the latest 

technical standards that would facilitate a seamless communication and operation with the 

PARCS.  In contrast the current Xerox PARCS is married to Transcore AVI reader and 

antenna hardware, but those two systems have never integrated in a manner that is 

operationally consistent, and dependable for use in customer applications. 

 

8. Question: Will the Port depend on federal grant money for this project?  

 

Answer: No.  
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9. Question: Regarding system testing and acceptance assumptions for the cost proposal, what 

happens if the Phase IV testing and acceptance processes take longer than expected?  How 

could the consultant be compensated for added effort and travel?   

 

Answer: The Port would probably provide flexibility so that the consultant can price out 

additional visits on a Time and Material basis. 

 

10. Question: Do the filled out RFP forms need to be bounded and will the forms be counted 

against 16 pages limit? 

 

Answer:  Yes, all submitted material must be bound with only one staple or binder clip in 

the upper left corner and the required forms will NOT be counted against the 16 pages limit 

(one sided) or 8 pages (double sided). 

 
11. Question: We understand responses are limited to 16 pages. Are cover pages, back pages 

and divider pages included in this count? 

 

Answer: No. 

 

12. Question: Section II, Phase I, Paragraph L, Page 5, states “Document findings in an 

Evaluation and Recommendations report, delivering a draft report within approximately 60 

days from start of project.” 

 

The last paragraph of Section II, Page 6, states “The Port’s short-term goal is to have a 

PARCS procurement RFP  solicitation document ready for distribution within 

approximately three months after selection of the PARCS consultant. This would encompass 

Phases I and II, and parts of Phase III.” 

 

Given that the schedule allocates two months to Phase I, Phase II and parts of Phase III 

would have to be completed in one month. Based on our experience compressing scope of 

work described for Phase II into less than one month is not realistic especially taking into 

consideration that the Port will require at least one week of review time following each 

design submittal. A typical design phase for a comparable airport PARCS design would be 3 

months. Will the Port consider extending the schedule? 

Answer:  The Port believes that completing Phase I – Functional Analysis and System 

Scoping within 60 days is achievable.  However completing all of Phase II and parts of 

Phase III within 30 days may be overly optimistic.  Proposers should state their best 

estimates of the time to complete each of Phase I, Phase II and Phase 3 Sections A, B and C 

(i.e. up to the point that a PARCS procurement RFP is ready to be advertised).  Please 

provide these timeframe estimates in Proposal Section 4, “Plan and Approach”, at the end 

of the description of work to be performed in Phases I, II and III-Sections A-C.  Durations 

should reflect all anticipated document review periods by Port staff. 
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13. Question: Does the Port have a desired goal percentage of total project participation by a 

certified LIA or LBA firm? 

 

Answer: The Port does not have a goal for this project.  Rather, preference points are 

awarded for the meaningful participation of Port small/local certified firms.   It is the Port's 

policy to encourage and facilitate full and equitable opportunities for small and local 

businesses by providing up to 15 preference points for Port certified Local Impact Area 

(LIA) and Local Business Area (LBA) firms. 
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 Proposal Work Sheet-Optional Cost Information 

 
RFP No.:  13-14/10 

Airport Parking Revenue Control System Consulting Services 
 

Optional Task: Airport Permit Parking Lots 
 

Note: This form must be included along with the Proposal Work Sheet (Attachment 4)  

 
This sample worksheet template may be used or adapted for your Cost Proposal.   

 

Positions: 

Labor Rates, Hours and Cost 

Labor Cost 

Principal 

Project 

Manager 

Senior 

Analyst Analyst Support Total 

Hours Billing Rates: $ $ $ $ $ 

Work Phase 

I.  Functional Analysis and Scoping 

Hours        

Cost       $ 

 

II.  System Design and Specifications 

Hours        

Cost       $ 

 

 

TOTAL HOURS      

 $ TOTAL LABOR COST      

 

 
A. Travel Expense Budget 

# Assumed Person-Trips and Total Cost:  # Person-Trips:________________Total Cost:  $____________ 
(Assumes travel to OAK and to PARCS production site) 
 

 
B. Other Direct Costs:  $_______________________________________________________ 

(Includes all communications, production and other project-related costs.  Corporate Overhead should be 
reflected in personnel billing rates) 
 
 
C. Total Not-to-Exceed cost for this service $ ____________________________________ 

(Including all labor, overhead and travel costs) 

 

Respondent Name:  _______________________  Title:  _______________________________  

Company Name:__________________________________________________________________ 

Authorized Signature: _____________________________________  Date:  ________________  
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